
 
O n e  O l d e  H a l f  D a y  R o a d ,  L i n c o l n s h i r e ,  I L  6 0 0 6 9  
Ph: 847.883.8600 | Fax: 847.883.8608 | www. l i n co ln sh i re i l . gov  

 
 

AGENDA 
COMMITTEE OF THE WHOLE MEETING 

Village Hall – Board Room 
Monday, December 10, 2018 

Following Regular Village Board Meeting 
 

Reasonable accommodations / auxiliary aids will be provided to enable persons with disabilities to effectively participate in any 
public meetings of the Board.  Please contact the Village Administrative Office (847.883.8600) 48 hours in advance if you need 

special accommodations to attend. The Committee of the Whole will not proceed past 10:30 p.m. unless there is a consensus of the 
majority of the Trustees to do so. Citizens wishing to address the Board on agenda items may speak when the agenda item is open, 

prior to Board discussion. 
 
CALL TO ORDER  
1.0 ROLL CALL  

    
2.0 APPROVAL OF MINUTES 

2.1 Acceptance of the November 26, 2018 Committee of the Whole Meeting Minutes 
 
3.0 ITEMS OF GENERAL BUSINESS  

3.1 Planning, Zoning and Land Use  
 

3.2 Finance and Administration 
  
3.3 Public Works 
   
 
3.4 Public Safety 

 
3.5 Parks and Recreation 
 3.51 Consideration and Discussion of a Request for Chicago Rush North 

Shore Soccer to Obtain Field Usage Time as an Affiliate of the 
Lincolnshire Sports Association (Lincolnshire Sports Association) 

 
 3.52 Consideration and Discussion of the Use of Village Streets by District 103 

Parent-Teacher Organization for a May 18, 2019 5K Walk/Run (District 
103 Parent-Teacher Organization) 
 

3.6 Judiciary and Personnel 
   
4.0 UNFINISHED BUSINESS 
5.0 NEW BUSINESS 
6.0 EXECUTIVE SESSION 
7.0 ADJOURNMENT 



 
 
 
 

O n e  O l d e  H a l f  D a y  R o a d  
L i n c o l n s h i r e ,  I L  6 0 0 6 9  
w w w . l i n co l n s h i re i l . g o v  

 
2.1 

MINUTES 
COMMITTEE OF THE WHOLE MEETING 

Monday, November 26, 2018   
Present: 
Mayor Brandt      Trustee Harms Muth 
Trustee Grujanac    Trustee Hancock 
Trustee McDonough     Trustee Servi  
Trustee Leider     Village Clerk Mastandrea 
Village Attorney Simon   Village Manager Burke 
Finance Director/Treasurer Peterson   Public Works Director Woodbury 
Chief of Police Leonas   Assistant Village Manager/Community & 
Planning & Development Manager Zozulya   Economic Development Director Gilbertson 

        
        

ROLL CALL 
Mayor Brandt called the meeting to order at 7:16 p.m. and Village Clerk Mastandrea called the 
Roll. 
 
2.0 APPROVAL OF MINUTES 

2.1 Acceptance of the November 12, 2018 Committee of the Whole Meeting 
Minutes 
 
The minutes of the November 12, 2018 Committee of the Whole Meeting were 
approved as submitted. 
 

3.0 ITEMS OF GENERAL BUSINESS 
   

3.1 Planning, Zoning and Land Use 
3.11 Consideration of an Ordinance Amending Title 6 (Zoning), 

Chapters 2, 8, and 11 of the Lincolnshire Village Code (Office-
Industrial O/I District Permitted and Special Uses) (Village of 
Lincolnshire) 

 
 Planning & Development Manager Zozulya provided an update from the 

October 9th preliminary evaluation at the Committee of Whole Meeting 
and an overview of the November 13th Zoning Board Public Hearing  
regarding recommendations for proposed Ordinance amending Title 6 
(Zoning), Chapters 2, 8, and 11 of the Lincolnshire Village Code (Office-
Industrial O/I District Permitted and Special Uses). 

 
 Planning & Development Manager Zozulya went through a list of 

proposed office and industrial use changes.  
 

 Trustee Hancock asked what would fall under “testing of materials”. 
Planning & Development Manager Zozulya stated this text amendment 



Page 2 
MINUTES – Committee of the Whole Meeting 
November 26, 2018 
 
 

was first proposed in 2010  at the request of Hewitt Associates and is 
for any non-hazardous lab-type pharmaceutical or food  testing, which 
would be permitted by building and fire codes and meet all safety 
required precautions. At that time, the current testing of materials cap of 
25% of the gross building or tenant area was adopted. Trustee Hancock 
noted concern with what may be tested and how staff would manage 
this. Planning & Development Manager Zozulya noted the testing would 
all be done indoors and regulated by the Village and the Fire District per  
required permits and inspections. Village Attorney Simon added these 
types of uses would also need to comply with required performance 
standards which are already in the code. Trustee Hancock asked why 
staff is recommending removing the 25% cap. Staff felt the 25% was 
somewhat arbitrary and restrictive since there have been no concerns 
raised about not having the cap.  

 
 Trustee Servi stated his opinion would be to take staff recommendation 

for capping assembly uses in the entire O/I zoning district at 150,000 sq. 
ft. instead of the Zoning Board recommendation of 250,000 sq. ft. 
Trustee Grujanac asked if staff feels there is a need for the Zoning 
Board recommendation of 250,000 sq. ft. Planning & Development 
Manager Zozulya stated the Zoning Board went to this number because 
they felt it is in the best interest of the Village to allow a landlord to be 
able to lease out an entire vacant building after hearing testimony from 
Mr. Chuck Lamphere, the President and CEO of Van Vlissingen and  
Company, a Lincolnshire-based large office and industrial property 
owner. There are a few large buildings that have been on the market for 
quite a few years that may allow for an assembly use. Trustee Servi 
expressed concern stating these buildings and parking were not 
planned for that type of assembly use. 

 
 Mr. Chuck Lamphere, stated they have a significant investment in 

Lincolnshire and are currently experiencing higher vacancy rates; 
specifically in the O/I zoning classification. Mr. Lamphere stated Special 
Use permits have become a detriment in trying to get occupancy. Mr. 
Lamphere suggested looking at neighboring communities when 
considering the proposed assembly use, noting the restrictions for this 
use are currently unusual.  

 
 Mr. Lamphere asked the Board to consider permitting one drive-thru for 

banks and financial institutions in the O/I zoning district. Mayor Brandt 
asked if there is a drive-thru at Bank of America. Planning & 
Development Manager Zozulya stated there are several drive-thru lanes 
at Bank of America. Trustee Hancock asked what the reason was 
behind not allowing a drive-thru at banks and financial institutions for the 
O/I zoning district. Village Attorney Simon stated it is not a question of 
whether or not it is allowed but whether or not it needs a Special Use 
permit. A conversation regarding the allowance of a drive-thru for banks 
and financial institutions and the proposed recommendations followed.  

 



Page 3 
MINUTES – Committee of the Whole Meeting 
November 26, 2018 
 
 

 Mr. Lamphere asked the Board to consider educational institutions for 
administrative offices and smaller on-site student population in the O/I 
district. Planning & Development Manager Zozulya noted administrative 
offices for schools are currently allowed. As long as there are no 
students or campus environment, it is allowed by right. Village Attorney 
Simon stated the reason to look at different uses and designate 
permitted uses or special uses within each separate zoning district is to 
make sure there are no building and use conflicts. Within the O/I zoning 
district, the goal is to have similar uses with similar traffic patterns. 
Currently the Village does not have a distinction between large-scale 
educational institutions and tutoring centers. Village Attorney Simon 
stated staff can come up with a definition for small-scale educational 
facilities if this is the direction from the Board. Mr. Lamphere would like 
to work with staff to craft something to address the issue of small-scale 
educational institutions. Trustee Servi asked how small-scale 
educational institutions would bring in revenue. Mr. Lamphere stated 
some would generate revenue through book sales. 

 
 Mr. Lamphere requested the Board consider performing and visual arts 

to be defined different than health clubs and include yoga, spinning and 
Pilates since Van Vlissingen would like to include these as incentives in 
their buildings. Village Attorney Simon asked if these classes would only 
be available to employees of the building or would they be open to the 
public. Mr. Lamphere stated he would like to see them as open to the 
public. Village Attorney Simon suggested an auxiliary use, which is a 
non-office use and amenity to the employees of that building but not 
open to the public and is a permitted use in an O/I zoning district. 
Planning & Development Manager Zozulya noted there is an existing 
permissibility for private and public recreation facilities, which 
permissibility is being expanded throughout the entire district, and these 
uses would fall under this and would require a Special Use permit.  

 
 Trustee Hancock noted concern regarding increasing the assembly use 

cap to the 250,000 sq. ft. as recommended by the Zoning Board without 
a Special Use. A conversation regarding assembly uses and the 
increase of square footage followed. It was noted that a Special Use 
permit would continue to be required for any assembly use.  

 
 Trustee Grujanac noted her opinion was to increase the assembly use 

maximum square footage to the 250,000, to allow one or two drive-thru 
lanes for financial institutions, and to develop a definition for small-scale 
educational institutions. Trustees Grujanac stated she is open to being 
more flexible with the uses and Trustee Harms Muth was in agreement.  

 
 It was the consensus of the Board for Village Attorney Simon to work 

with staff and make suggested changes and place this on the next 
Regular Village Board Agenda for discussion and approval. 

 
 



Page 4 
MINUTES – Committee of the Whole Meeting 
November 26, 2018 
 
 

3.12 Consideration of an Ordinance Amending Title 2 (Boards & 
Commissions), Chapter 3 (Architectural Review Board), Section 2-
3-2 (Board Membership) of the Lincolnshire Village Code 
Pertaining to Alternate Members (Village of Lincolnshire) 

 
 Assistant Village Manager/Community & Economic Development (CED) 

Director Gilbertson provided a summary of a proposed Ordinance 
amending Title 2 (Boards & Commissions), Chapter 3 (Architectural 
Review Board), Section 2-3-2 (Board Membership) of the Lincolnshire 
Village Code pertaining to Alternate Members. This would provide for an 
additional alternate member of the Architectural Review Board (ARB). 

 
 Mayor Brandt stated she met with the Chairman of the ARB and she 

was in support of the change.  
 
 It was the consensus of the Board to place this item on the Consent 

Agenda for approval at the next Regular Village Board Meeting. 
 

3.2 Finance and Administration 
3.21 Consideration of Final Changes to the Proposed Fiscal Year 2019 

Budget (Village of Lincolnshire) 
 
 Village Manager Burke provided a brief summary of the final changes to 

the proposed Fiscal Year 2019 Budget.  
 
   It was the consensus of the Board to place this item on the Consent 

Agenda for approval at the next Regular Village Board Meeting. 
    

3.22 Consideration of Workers Compensation Insurance Coverage for 
the period of January 1, 2019 to December 31, 2019 with the Illinois 
Public Risk Fund in the Amount of $144,794; Consideration of 
Property and Liability Insurance Coverage for the period of 
January 1, 2019 to April 30, 2019 with the Municipal Insurance 
Cooperative Agency in the Amount of $41,455; and Consideration 
of a Resolution to Enroll in the Municipal Insurance Cooperative 
Agency (Village of Lincolnshire) 

 
 Finance Director/Treasurer Peterson provided a summary of a proposed 

Workers Compensation Insurance coverage for the period of January 1, 
2019 to December 31, 2019 with the Illinois Public Risk Fund in the 
amount of $144,794; consideration of Property and Liability Insurance 
coverage for the period of January 1, 2019 to April 30, 2019 with the 
Municipal Insurance Cooperative Agency in the amount of $41,455; and 
consideration of a Resolution to enroll in the Municipal Insurance 
Cooperative Agency (MICA). 

 
 Finance Director/Treasurer Peterson stated there needs to be some 

minor changes to the Resolution that staff would like to bring back to the 
Board at the next Regular Village Board meeting for consideration and 



Page 5 
MINUTES – Committee of the Whole Meeting 
November 26, 2018 
 
 

approval.  
 
 Finance Director/Treasurer Peterson summarized staff  

recommendations as follows: secure workers compensation coverage 
through our existing provider, Illinois Public Risk Fund (IPRF), in the 
amount of $144,794 for 2019. Staff further recommends securing 
Property and Liability insurance with MICA in the amount of $124,365 
annually. To participate, the Village Board must approve a resolution for 
the Village to enroll in MICA (this resolution will be provided at the 
December 10, 2018 Regular Village Board meeting). MICA utilizes a 
May 1 – April 30 coverage period. To accommodate Lincolnshire’s 
request to participate, MICA agrees to provide coverage for the period 
January 1, 2019 – April 30, 2019 at the prorated amount of $41,455, 
and $124,365 for the period of May 1, 2019 – April 30, 2020. 

 
 Village Manager Burke stated a number of communities have 

participated in MICA as a shared insurance pool and staff has talked to 
their representatives to check satisfaction with the MICA services. 
Village Manager Burke noted Ancel Glink serves as legal counsel for 
MICA and provides some general defense for claims. 

 
 Trustee Hancock asked if any of the policies presented were shown to 

any other carriers and if so, how did they come back with regards to 
pricing and coverage comparison. Village Manager Burke stated 
Mesirow went out to the private commercial market to see if anybody 
would provide quotes for us and Travelers came back with the strongest 
quote, with the others being much higher. Village Manager Burke noted 
our previous provider, Glatfelter, continues to refuse to provide a quote 
to the Village. Glatfelter was concerned regarding the reaction of the 
Board with regard to the Worker Empowerment Ordinance.  

 
 Mayor Brandt asked what the savings number is as a result of the 

proposal. Finance Director/Treasurer Peterson stated if we were to keep 
everything under the same roof, with the Travelers and the IPRF versus 
going with MICA, there was an $18,000 difference. Since the 
recommendation is to go with the lower cost for the property and the 
lower cost for the compensation, the savings will be approximately 
$31,000 from the budgeted number.  

 
 It was the consensus of the Board to place this item on the Consent 

Agenda for approval at the next Regular Village Board Meeting. 
 

3.23 Consideration of Renewal of Cable Franchise Agreement with 
Comcast of California/Illinois, LLC (Village of Lincolnshire) 

 
 Assistant Village Manager/CED Director Gilbertson provided a summary 

of the renewal of Cable Franchise Agreement with Comcast of 
California/Illinois, LLC, which enables them to use the Village’s right-of-
way to provide cable services to our residents. Assistant Village 



Page 6 
MINUTES – Committee of the Whole Meeting 
November 26, 2018 
 
 

Manager/CED Director Gilbertson went through the list of key provisions 
of the agreement.  

 
 Village Manager Burke noted the PEG Capital Fee, which the Village 

may request to collect up to thirty-five cents ($0.35) per customer per 
month to be passed on to each subscriber, is not being implemented as 
part of the current agreement and would need to be a separate action of 
the Board if the Board chooses at a future date. 

 
 It was the consensus of the Board to place this item on the Consent 

Agenda for approval at the next Regular Village Board Meeting. 
 

 3.24 Consideration of an Ordinance Amending Title 1 (Administration), 
Chapter 9 (Senior Citizen Property Tax Relief) of the Lincolnshire 
Village Code to Add a Sunset Provision (Village of Lincolnshire) 

 
  Assistant Village Manager/CED Director Gilbertson provided a summary 

of an Ordinance Amending Title 1, Chapter 9 (Senior Citizen Property 
Tax Relief) of the Village Code to add a Sunset Provision which is a 
follow-up item from the Budget workshop meetings. Any senior citizen 
that is not enrolled in this program by December 31, 2018, is not eligible 
for a grant in future years.  

 
   It was the consensus of the Board to place this item on the Consent 

Agenda for approval at the next Regular Village Board Meeting.  
 

3.3 Public Works 
3.4 Public Safety 
3.5 Parks and Recreation 
3.6 Judiciary and Personnel 

 
4.0 UNFINISHED BUSINESS  
5.0 NEW BUSINESS   
6.0 EXECUTIVE SESSION 
 
7.0 ADJOURNMENT 

Trustee Grujanac moved and Trustee Servi seconded the motion to adjourn. Upon a 
voice vote, the motion was approved unanimously and Mayor Brandt declared the 
meeting adjourned at 8:33 p.m. 

 
 Respectfully submitted, 
 VILLAGE OF LINCOLNSHIRE 
 
 
 

 
 Barbara Mastandrea 

 Village Clerk 



REQUEST FOR BOARD ACTION
Committee of the Whole

December 10, 2018
 

Subject: Consideration and Discussion of a Request for Chicago Rush 
North Soccer to Obtain Field Usage Time as an Affiliate of the 
Lincolnshire Sports Association (Lincolnshire Sports 
Association)

Action Requested:
 
Consideration and Discussion 

 
Originated By:

 
Bradford H. Woodbury, Public Works Director

 
Referred To:

 
Mayor and Board of Trustees

 
Summary / Background:
At the November 28, 2018, Village Park Board meeting, the Park Board voted to 
recommend approval of Chicago Rush Soccer as an affiliate of the Lincolnshire Sports 
Association. The Park Board recommended approval with the agreement that North 
Park Field Usage Fees and the Field Usage Policy in total would be reviewed in early 
2019. 

On May 15, 2018 members of the Lincolnshire Sports Association (LSA) met with 
Village staff to discuss several issues. One of the issues discussed was the affiliate 
approval process. Per Village Code, outside organizations are required to obtain 
approval from both the Park Board and Village Board before being recognized as an 
official LSA affiliate and allowed to have access to North Park playing fields. Staff has 
since researched this issue and has confirmed that Chicago Rush Soccer has not been
previously approved as an LSA affiliate. As a result, Village of Lincolnshire staff 
conclude Chicago Rush Soccer should be treated as an affiliate to LSA and be required 
to go through the affiliate approval process.

The Lincolnshire Sports Association proposes to enter into an affiliation with Chicago 
Rush North Soccer and requests the Village grant affiliate status to Chicago Rush North 
Soccer to utilize field usage at North Park. The terms of a preliminary agreement 
between LSA and Chicago Rush North Soccer are attached.

In accordance with the Athletic Field Usage Policy, Chicago Rush North would be 
applying for classification B affiliate status is currently $20.00 per participant (per 
season). The request is made in accordance with Section 8-1E-2-A-9 of the Village 
Code.

Agenda Item
         3.51 COW



Below is a definition of Classification B status:

Classification B:

Lincolnshire Sports League - the Village of Lincolnshire does not provide organized 
sports activities for its residents.  LSA fills this need through volunteer service and is 
recognized as providing a valuable service to the community.  The Village will review, 
on an annual basis, a per participant fee for use of fields. For this reason they shall 
have second priority for use of the Village playing fields.

LSA may wish to establish a partnership with an organization to provide assistance in 
supporting their programs.  All proposed partnerships will be presented to the Park 
Board and Village Board for review and potential approval. If this partnership involves 
use of North Park fields by the partner organization, then all copies of all agreements 
establishing such partnerships shall be submitted with the application. The pay structure 
for Classification B is as follows for soccer:

Classification B

$20.00 per participant (per season) 
No deposit required.
$10.00 per hour fee charged for lighted fields (in addition to participant fee)

If Classification B were to be denied by the Village Board, Chicago Rush North Soccer 
would still be eligible to apply for a permit to utilize North Park as a Classification C 
status. The pay structure for Classification C is as follows for soccer:

Classification C

$60.00 per participant (per season)   
No deposit required.
$80.00 per hour fee charged for lighted fields (in addition to participant fee)
Team Fees:

5-16 hours $600 per team for 12-13 week season
17-32 hours $1,200 per team for 12-13 week season
33-48 hours $1,800 per team for 12-13 week season

Budget Impact:
The revenue anticipated by Chicago Rush Soccer would is estimated to be $10,000.00 
per year.

Recommendation:
Staff has no recommendation or objection to allowing Chicago Rush Soccer to utilize 
field space at North Park, subject to field availability as established by the Lincolnshire 
Sports Association (LSA).



Reports and Documents Attached:

Athletic Field Usage Policy
LSA Affiliate Proposal Form (Application)
Chicago Rush Affiliate Agreement
Midwest Soccer Coaching Contract
Minutes from the 11/28 Park Board Meeting
Questions/Concerns from 11/28 Park Board Meeting
Chicago Rush North Informational page

Meeting History
Committee of the Whole December 10, 2018

Park Board November 28, 2018
 



 
 

 Revised 04/2018 
 

VILLAGE OF LINCOLNSHIRE 
FIELD USAGE POLICY 

 
The Field Usage Policy for the Village of Lincolnshire has been established to provide a systematic 
method for utilization of the Village’s playing fields.  It has also been developed to protect and ensure 
that those fields are in top condition. 
 
A permit is required for any organized game or practice, other than those run or organized by 
Lincolnshire Sports Association or the Village of Lincolnshire. The Village does not rent Athletic Fields 
by the hour for individual use. General drop-in use of the Village athletic fields does not require a 
permit and is available on a first come, first serve basis.  Drop-in use is limited to four hours and does 
not include any organized league games or practices.  A group with an approved permit shall have 
priority use of the fields over a group without an approved permit. Any individual or organization 
wishing to use the playing fields for team use for more than four hours in any given season is required 
to file an application under Classification C.  A separate application and criteria are required.   
 
Application for Permit   
Permit requests by all applicants must be submitted, not less than sixty (60) days prior to the date(s) 
requested and not more than one hundred and twenty (120) days in advance of the date(s) requested.  
Permits will be considered on a first come, first served basis. Applicants will be notified approximately 
thirty (30) days prior to the first requested field usage date if their request is approved or not. 
 
Field Usage Availability  
Field conditions are determined by staff. If staff determines that the fields are not playable then no 
play will be held. Fields will be scheduled based on existing usage levels for the overall facility and the 
ability to keep the fields in good playing condition. 
 
Payment of Fees  
The Village of Lincolnshire shall invoice any applicants which cause damage during use of any of its 
playing fields.  In addition to field fees there will be additional charges for lights. 
 
Applicants requesting a permit on a non-seasonal basis shall be required to pay the established fee at 
the time of application.  Should an application be denied all fees will be refunded.  
A minimum of one hour is required for each field reservation but may be reserved in increments of 
thirty minutes after the minimum one hour period. 
 
Applicants requesting a permit on a seasonal basis are required to apply under Classification C.  See 
Village of Lincolnshire Field Usage Criteria for Classification C and the Field Usage Application 
Classification C.  Fees for seasonal use shall be due to the Village of Lincolnshire within ten business 
days after the first day of play. If fees are not received within ten business days, the remaining field 
dates will be cancelled and made available to other teams. 
 
Applications and fees shall be submitted to: Lincolnshire Village Hall, One Olde Half Day Road, 
Lincolnshire, IL 60069 
 
Athletic Field/Inspections  
It is understood that normal wear and tear is acceptable.  However, any damage beyond what is 
considered normal wear and tear will be charged to the permit holder. The permit holder is 
responsible for all damage done to Village property as a result of their use.  This would include, but 
not be limited to, heavy play on fields after a rain event, damage to fencing, park amenities, trash, etc. 



 
 
At the conclusion of the each scheduled event, an inspection of the picnic area will be performed by 
Village staff to determine if the athletic field area was damaged. If there are damages and/or 
expenses incurred by the Village as a result of said event, the permitee shall be responsible for the 
costs of such damage and may be invoiced for all such costs 
 
Refund of Fees   
 
A refund of athletic field permit fees shall be made for the following reasons: 
 
1. If the Village of Lincolnshire believes that the athletic field is in unplayable condition and/or 

may be damaged due to field conditions, no play will be allowed and a refund or a credit 
towards a substitute time will be issued, in the Village’s sole discretion. 

 
2. If the group or individual provides written notification of cancellation to the Village at least one 

week prior to the date reserved.  NOTE: written notification is required for each individual field, 
date and time and does not apply to seasonal permits. 

 
3. An applicant who wishes a refund for a seasonal permit must provide a written notification of 

cancellation not less than one week prior to the date requested. 
 
4. The Village of Lincolnshire cancels a permitted use of the athletic fields due to a conflict with a 

Village use. 
 
Insurance and Waiver Forms 
 
1. All groups or organizations who provide organized play of sports and who are requesting a 

permit for use of Village playing fields, must provide, at the time of application, a certificate of 
insurance listing the Village of Lincolnshire as additional insured and a copy of the waiver form 
to be completed by its participants. This waiver shall clearly state the Village of Lincolnshire is 
relieved from any and all responsibility arising out of use of the playing fields. 

 
2. The Village of Lincolnshire shall request the holder of the permit for organized play to provide 

copies of all signed waiver forms for each participant intending to use the playing fields. 
 
3. Insurance and waiver forms are not required of groups or organizations who are requesting a 

permit for use of playing fields for a private party, outing or similar one time activity who do not 
provide regular organized play. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 

Athletic Field Use Classifications 
 
Classification A: (Village of Lincolnshire) 
 
The Village of Lincolnshire shall have first priority for use of the North Park Athletic Fields and, 
provided the Village’s use conflicts with a permit for use, may cancel or reschedule any permits for 
use of the North Park Athletic Fields at its discretion. 
 
Classification B: (Lincolnshire Sports Association and Affiliates) 
 
Lincolnshire Sports Association - The Village of Lincolnshire does not provide organized sports 
activities for its residents.  LSA fills this need through volunteer service and is recognized as providing 
a valuable service to the community. For this reason they shall have second priority for use of the 
North Park Athletic Fields. The Village may review the participant fee for use of North Park Athletic 
Fields and therefore reserves the right to increase fees appropriately as needed. 
 
LSA may wish to establish a partnership with an organization to provide assistance in supporting its 
programs.  LSA shall enter into an Affiliate Service Contract with the Village and each partner 
organization (an “Affiliate”).  The form of the Contract shall be approved by the Village Board. 
 
The Affiliate shall complete a Program Proposal Form prior to entering into the Affiliate Service 
Contract.  The Village shall evaluate the program based upon the following criteria.  Those programs 
not meeting the criteria shall be presented to the Park and Village Boards for review and approval.   
 
Affiliate Criteria: 
 
a. The program shall identify a direct benefit to residents of the Village. 
b. The program shall identify a direct benefit to LSA. 
c. The Affiliate has been previously approved by the Village as an Affiliate and has complied with 

all park regulations and has not caused damage to the facilities. 
d. The Affiliate is offering a program similar to that which has historically been offered by LSA. 
e. Field time is available. 

 
Copies of all agreements establishing such partnerships shall be submitted with the application. 
 
Classification C: (Non Affiliates) 
 
Any individual or organization wishing to use the North Park Athletic Fields that is not affiliated with 
the Village of Lincolnshire, LSA, or a partner with LSA, is required to apply for North Park Athletic 
Field usage under this classification. A separate application and criteria are required. 
 

a. Applications shall not be submitted less than sixty (60) days nor more than one hundred 
twenty (120) days prior to the start of play.  Notification of field availability, if any, will not be 
provided until approximately 30 days prior to the start of play. 

 
b. The applicant cannot request North Park Athletic Field usage, in Classification C, for any 

programs which would be in competition with a program currently offered by Lincolnshire 
Sports Association. 

 
c. Priority will be given to the applicant who has the highest percentage of Lincolnshire    

residents participating in their program.  Resident participation is defined as those individuals 



 
 

who reside within the corporate limits of the Village of Lincolnshire and would not include 
participants who may be in School District 103 not residing in Lincolnshire. 
 
The applicant must provide a certified team roster for the current program year.  This roster 
shall identify each participant, their age, name, address and phone number. This roster shall 
be provided with the application. 
 

d. The applicant is required to provide proof of insurance which complies with Paragraph 7 
above. Proof of insurance must be provided at the time of application. 
 

e. A program description shall be required and shall include: 
 

  i. The North Park Athletic Field number requested (fields are numbered and must 
be identified by the applicant on the application form) and size of field. 

  ii. Number of teams and ages of team members 
  iii. Number of hours of field time broken down into practices and games 
  iv. Start date and end date for each season (fall or spring) 
  v. Days and times of days requested  

 
f. The need for lights will be determined by the Village. The applicant will receive a listing of 

dates and times for lights with the final permit. Applicant will be responsible for any applicable 
lighting fees as herein described. 
 

g. Class C usage fees are required to be paid at the conclusion of the season.   
 

h. Class C usage fees shall include the participant fee in addition to the team fees. These fees 
shall be paid prior to the use of the fields. If fees are not received by this time, North Park 
Athletic Field usage for the remaining portion of the season will be cancelled and no refund will 
be provided.  
 

i. For each 5% of the participants who are Lincolnshire residents the North Park Athletic Field 
Usage Fee will be reduced by 5% until a maximum of 50% is reached. 
 

j. Selection for Classification C status for single events meeting the above criteria is determined 
by Village staff. Requests for three or more events in a single year will be determined by a 
recommendation from the Park Board with final approval by the Village Board. This process 
may take up to sixty days.  The ability of the North Park Athletic Fields to support play is 
determined by staff. This is based on existing usage levels and the ability to keep the North 
Park Athletic Fields in good condition. 

 
k. The applicant shall require its participants to sign the standard Lincolnshire waiver form or a 

pre-approved equivalent waiver form. A copy of the waiver form shall be submitted at time of 
application. Signed copies of waivers shall be submitted for each player at the time of 
payment. 

 
B.  All Other Athletic Fields 

 
1. Permits are not required to use the athletic fields at Spring Lake Park and Olde Mill 

Park. The Village may adopt policies from time to time governing the use of the 
facilities. These policies shall be posted at the facility in a conspicuous place.  

 
 



 
 
Field Usage Hours 
  
Spring Lake Baseball Field    8:00 a.m. - 9:00 p.m. 
Olde Mill Park Baseball Field and Soccer Field 8:00 a.m. - 9:00 p.m. 
 NOTE: Spring Lake Park and Olde Mill Park do not have lighted fields. 
 
North Park Baseball Fields and Soccer Fields 7:00 a.m. - 10:00 p.m.*  
 *(Except when fields are permitted for use they may be permitted to 11:00 p.m.) 
 NOTE: North Park has two lighted baseball and four lighted soccer fields. 
 
NOTE: Subject to Village use, Lincolnshire Sports Association has priority use of all fields.  Fields will not be permitted for 
use during dates and times reserved for Lincolnshire Sports  
Association 
 
Fee Schedule: Baseball/Field Hockey/Softball/Soccer/Kickball 
 
Classification A – (Village of Lincolnshire) 
   

� No participant fee.    
� No deposit required. 
� No fee charged for lighted fields  

 
Classification B – (Lincolnshire Sports Association and Affiliates)  
 

� $20.00 per participant (per season)  
� No deposit required. 
� $10.00 per hour fee charged for lighted fields (in addition to participant fee) 

 
NOTE: Applicants in Classification B are only required to pay the per participant rate plus hourly rates for lights and are not 
required to pay additional Team Fees beyond the participant rate.   

 
Classification C – (Non Affiliates) 
    

� $60.00 per participant (per season)    
� No deposit required. 
� $80.00 per hour fee charged for lighted fields (in addition to participant fee) 
� Team Fees: 

    
    5-16 hours $600 per team for 12-13 week season 
    17-32 hours $1,200 per team for 12-13 week season 
    33-48 hours  $1,800 per team for 12-13 week season 
 
For every 5% of the team participants who are Lincolnshire residents a 5% reduction in fee will be 
provided to a minimum fee of: 
 
    5-16 hours $300 per season 
    17-32 hours $600 per season 
    33-48 hours $900 per season 
      
NOTE: Team Fees are to be paid in addition to the per participant fees for applicants in Classification C. For example, a 
team in Classification C consisting of 10 players would pay $600 ($60x10) in addition to the team fee based off hours of 
usage. Additionally, any hours requested over the maximum 48 hours will require an hourly payment at a rate of $80.00 per 
hour. 
 



 
 
Approved by:___________________________ 
Date:__________________ Permit No._____________ 

 
 

Village of Lincolnshire 
FIELD USAGE PERMIT FORM 

(Classifications A or B) 
 
Name of Applicant:______________________________________________________________ 
 
Address:____________________________________Email:__________________________ 
 
Home Phone Number:____________________Business Phone Number:___________________ 
 
Applicant Classification:   (Circle One)     A B   
See classification schedule in Usage Policy. 
 
Park: ________________ Sport: (Circle One)   Baseball    Field Hockey    Soccer    Softball    Kickball 
 
Field Number: _____________Date:______________ Time Requested: From _____To______ 
 
North Park Lights Requested:    (Circle One)   Yes No         
 
PAYMENT:  
(See classification fee schedule in Usage Policy for fee information.) 
 
Total Number of Participants:______ Total Payment:________ Date:________ Check No.:_____ 
 
 
 
On behalf of ____________________________(individual or organization name), I have read the 
Village of Lincolnshire Field Usage Policy and do hereby agree to comply with the rules and 
regulations outlined in this policy. 
 ________________________________ 
                         (Signed) 
       
 
 
       ============================For Office Use Only========================== 
 
Field Area Inspected By:_____________________________Date:________________________                            
Condition of Field Area:__________________________________________________________ 
 
Damage Sustained:__________________ Action Taken: ________________________________ 
______________________________________________________________________________ 
 
______________________________________________________________________________ 
 
 Copy to Applicant: _____ Copy to P.W.: ______ Copy to Book:_______ 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 
Approved by:___________________________ 
Date:__________________ Permit No._____________ 

 
 

Village of Lincolnshire 
FIELD USAGE PERMIT FORM 

(Classification C) 
     (complete a separate application for each season) 

 
 
Name of Organization:__________________________________________________________ 
 
Address:_____________________________________________________________________ 
 
Phone Number:____________________________Fax Number:_________________________ 
 
Email Address:________________________________________________________________ 
 
Program Description:  __________________________________________________________ 
 
Season: Fall_____ Spring_____ 
 
Start Date of Program:_______________  End Date of  Program:_______________ 
 
Number of Games:__________    Length of field time reserved for each individual game:__________ 
 
Number of Practices:________     Length of field time reserved for each individual practice:________ 
 
Number of Teams:__________     Total Number of Field Hours:___________ 
 

 
Team 

 
Age of 
Participants 

 
Day(s) 
Requested 

 
Time(s) 
Requested 

 
Field Size 
Requirements  

 
Lights 

 
Total Hours 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
  
*It is understood by the applicant that the Village will to specify times when lights are required. The 
applicant will be billed for light fees and shall pay for all fees related to permit usage times when lights 
are on. 



 
 
PAYMENT:  
(See classification fee schedule in Usage Policy for fee information.) 
 
Total Number of Participants:_________   Total Participant Fee: _________ 
 
Total Hours of Field Time Requested:____________ Total Number of Teams:__________ 
 
Total Team Fees: _____________    Percentage of Lincolnshire Residents:__________ 
 
Total Payment (participant fees + team fees) :________ Date:________ Check No.:________ 
 
*Resident is defined as those individuals residing within the corporate limits of the Village of Lincolnshire. 
 
The following attachments are required: 
 
 
_____ Certified team roster from the current program year.  Individual names, addresses and phone 

numbers of participants must be provided. 
 
_____ Certificate of Insurance listing the Village of Lincolnshire as additional insured.  Minimum  

liability of $2,000,000. 
 
_____ Copy of waiver form to be used. (Signed completed waivers shall be provided to the 
 Village at time of payment.) 
 
_____ Any promotional material used to advertise the existing program and/or to solicit participants. 
 
 
I have read and understand the Field Usage Permit Policy and Field Usage Criteria for Classification C.  
 
I am executing this application on behalf of __________________________________________. 
 
 
_________________    _____________________________________ 
 Date              Signature                             
 
      ____________________________________ 
         Title                                
 
 
       ============================For Office Use Only========================== 
 
Field Area Inspected By:_____________________________Date:________________________                            
Condition of Field Area:__________________________________________________________ 
 
Damage Sustained:__________________ Action Taken: ________________________________ 
______________________________________________________________________________ 
 
______________________________________________________________________________ 
 
 Copy to Applicant: _____ Copy to P.W.: ______ Copy to Book:_______ 
 

 



Lincolnshire Sports Association 
AFFILIATE  PROPOSAL FORM 

 

I/We, Chicago Rush Soccer Club, hereinafter called the "Affiliate", propose to provide 
instructors, materials, and supplies for the program listed below. 

 
This proposal is an addendum to the Affiliate Service Contract and serves as a detailed 
explanation of services provided as listed under Summary of Program in the Affiliate 
Service Contract. 

 
 
Activity/Program Title:  Chicago Rush North Soccer Club  

 
Age/Grade of Participants:  4-18 years old  

 
 
Program Description: 
The  description  should  include  specific  program  information. 

 
1. What is the objective of this program for participants? 

 
Mission Statement - Chicago Rush Soccer is committed to providing an unparalleled soccer 
experience for all who have interest in the game of soccer. Chicago Rush promotes the 
development of character, the electricity of competition and the importance of pure 
enjoyment. We accept the responsibility of teaching life lessons to our athletes to further 
their growth inside the game and out. We believe that all players should be afforded an 
equal opportunity to explore their potential and participate in challenging circumstances 
that will yield positive outcomes. We are committed to making soccer a pleasant, safe and 
rewarding experience for everyone involved, regardless of age or ability. Through quality 
coaching, sound leadership and absolute sincerity, Chicago Rush Soccer will work to be 
the best soccer club in the world. 

 
 
2. If the program you are providing is a series of classes or clinics, please explain the 

program development from one session to the next. 
 
As a organization, we have a curriculum as a guide to help our coaches develop players at 
the appropriate level.  The curriculum varies from age to age, and we have directors in place 
to make sure that what is being taught is going to help make the players better.  Equally as 
important, Rush has 11 core values, each focusing on critical life skills.  We align our 
curriculum each week with a core value, so not only are players getting taught soccer, but 
also an valuable life lesson. 

 
 
3. Please explain what equipment or concepts will be used to teach this program. 
 

Coaches supply their own cones, pinnies, and soccer equipment, as well as moveable goals to 
help make the training environment safe for all players.  We also have access to the permanent 
goals provided by the village, as well as the kick back goals.  Typically the goals are only used 
for game days. 

 
 



4. If this program is for a variety of ages, please explain how each age group’s 
instruction will be tailored to that group. 

 
As mentioned, we have multiple curriculums that are proven throughout the country, and used 
in numerous Rush locations.  Coaches use these resources to implement into the variety of 
teams ranging from u8-u19. We understand that players develop at different times, and 
therefore have some flexibility in what is being taught based off their age, and focusing more 
on individual player development, within certain teams.   

 
It takes a skill as a coach to adapt, and work with a variety of skill level with a group, but by 
focusing on player development, and challenging every player in the club, gives them the best 
opportunity to compete and get better. 

 
We make sure that all of our coaches are licensed, and background checked, and therefore 
prepared for having a comprehensive session plan for their team, and making sure the 
session is tailored specifically for that group. 

 
5. What will each participant have accomplished at the conclusion of the program? 
 

As per our mission statement – Yes, we want to have success on the field, making players the 
best they can be, winning games, leagues, and tournaments.  However, we feel that it is 
equally as important to create character, friendships, and development good life lessons. 

 
 
6. What benefit(s) will Village of Lincolnshire residents receive from the program? 
 

The Rush organization is the worlds largest youth soccer club.  It boasts over 35,000 players 
worldwide, with 29 states, and 20 countries all coaching the Rush way.  To provide this 
opportunity to players within the village of Lincolnshire is a huge benefit to giving players a 
chance to compete locally, regionally, and nationally.  Rush offers community programs that 
collect old soccer gear, and donates to our sister club in Cameroon.  We have player loan 
programs, where any player can go and guest with another Rush club around the world.  We 
have a pyramid of player development, which now can offer players the chance to play pro, 
with our Rush pro team out of Pennsylvania. 

 
The program has 6 other Rush clubs around Chicago land, and players with Rush North now 
have a true path way to develop and be part of something huge, right on their doorstep. 

 
 
7. What benefit(s) will Lincolnshire Sports Association will receive from the program? 

 
The LSA benefits have not changed from when it was Lincolnshire Lightning versus Chicago 
Rush North, it allows the kids in the community an opportunity to improve their soccer skills and 
fitness. 

 
Description: Please attach a written description of the program, photos, and company logo to be 
used by the Lincolnshire Sports Association for promotional purposes. 

 
The link explains the Chicago rush way, and the stages of learning, along with an overview of the 
seasons schedule. http://www.chicagorushsoccer.com  

 
 
 
 



Class/Clinic/Camp/Tournament Schedule: 
 
 
Please identify which sessions you would be interested in providing this program. 

Proposed Number of Weeks:    

Proposed day/days of week: 
Mon._ X  Tues._ X  Wed. X  Thurs._X Fri._   Sat.   

Sat.    X     Sun. X  
 
Proposed time of day: 

Morning   Afternoon   After School X  Evening   
 
 
Proposed Location: North Park  

 
Other:_   

 
 
Maximum number of participants in program:  300  

 
 
Minimum Number of Participants in program:  200  

 
 
Service Provider Fee Per Participant:   Varies-$1000-1900 

 
Exceptions: 
The Affiliate agrees to provide the above listed program as specified except: 



 
Statements and Certification: 
(Attach all necessary documents, certificates, and references.) 

 
 
LINCOLNSHIRE SPORTS ASSOCIATION AFFILIATE 

 
By:_   By:   

Signature Signature 
 
 
 
  

Title Title 
 
  
 
VILLAGE OF LINCOLNSHIRE 

 
By:_   

Signature 

Firm or Name of Individual 



































 
O n e  O l d e  H a l f  D a y  R o a d ,  L i n c o l n s h i r e ,  I L  6 0 0 6 9  
Phone: 847.883.8600 | Fax: 847.883.8608 | www. l incolnsh ire i l . gov  

 
 

MINUTES OF THE 
PARK BOARD MEETING 

Monday, November 28, 2018 
 
Present: Ken Borgerding, Park Board Chairman 
  Michael Brouillard 
  Lee Campbell 
  Lee Fell 
  Suzi Siegel 
  Sandra Wright 
  Kai Zhou 
  Tim Baynon, Forestry/Parks Foreman 
  Brad Woodbury, Public Works Director 
  Marc Facchini, Management Analyst 
  Jeff Ralston, Lincolnshire Sports Assocation 
  Ryan Daube, Lincolnshire Sports Association  
           
Absent: Michael Blasek, Alternate 
  Dr. Mara Grujanac, Trustee Liaison 
            
Location:  Lincolnshire Village Hall, Lincolnshire Illinois 60069  
 
 
1.0 CALL TO ORDER 

Chairman Borgerding called the meeting to order at 7:01 pm 
 
2.0 ROLL CALL    
 Forestry/Parks Foreman Baynon called roll and determined a quorum was present. 
 
3.0 APPROVAL OF MINUTES 
  
3.1 Approval of the Minutes of the September 17, 2018 Meeting of the Park Board 

(Village of Lincolnshire) 
 The Park Board reviewed the minutes of the September 17, 2018 meeting. A motion was 

made by Mr. Fell, seconded by Ms. Siegel, to approve the minutes as presented. The 
motion was approved by a unanimous voice vote. 

 
4.0 RESIDENT COMMENTS AND REQUESTS 
 4.1 None 
 
5.0 RECREATION 
 5.1  None 
  
6.0 PARKS 
  
6.1 Consideration and Discussion of a Request for Chicago Rush Soccer to Obtain 

Field Usage Time as an Affiliate of the Lincolnshire Sports Association 
(Lincolnshire Sports Association) 

  
 Mr. Woodbury explained how per the Village code, outside organizations are required to 

obtain approval from both the Park Board and the Village Board before being recognized 



Minutes of the November 28, 2018 Park Board Meeting 
Page 2 of 5 
 

as an official sports affiliate through Lincolnshire Sports Associate which would then give 
them access to the North Park playing fields. Mr. Woodbury explained that during staff 
research, staff found that the petitioner tonight, Chicago Rush North Soccer has not 
been previously approved as a Lincolnshire Sports Association affiliate. Mr. Woodbury 
explained that as a result, staff concluded that an organization such as Chicago Rush 
Soccer would be treated as an affiliate with Lincolnshire Sports Association and would 
be required to go through the proper approval process. Lincolnshire Sports Association 
is proposing to enter into an affiliation with Chicago Rush North Soccer and request the 
Village grant affiliate status to Chicago Rush North Soccer so they are able to utilize the 
sports fields at North Park. Mr. Woodbury said that the terms of the agreement between 
Chicago Rush North Soccer and Lincolnshire Sports Association are included in the 
Park Board Packet. Mr. Woodbury said that in accordance with the Athletic Field Usage 
Policy, Chicago Rush North Soccer would be applying for a Classification B status which 
is currently at a rate of $20/participant/season. Mr. Woodbury said that at this time, staff 
has no recommendation or objection to allow Chicago Rush North Soccer to utilize the 
athletic fields at North Park subject to the fields availability established by the 
Lincolnshire Sports Association.  

 
 Mr. Ralston explained to the Park Board that Lincolnshire Sports Association is sort of 

the ‘Village Park District’ for Lincolnshire. Mr. Ralston explained that LSA is a group of 
12 Volunteers where each one of the volunteers is a Director for a particular activity or 
program and then opened it up to questions.  

 
 Ms. Wright asked Mr. Ralston ‘what percentage of Lincolnshire Sports Association 

participants are Lincolnshire children?’ Mr. Ralston said that depending on the type of 
sport, it can range anywhere from 70%-100%. 

 
 Mr. Woodbury said that Lincolnshire Lighting was a local organization where as Chicago 

Rush North Soccer is a National Organization. At that point, it was concluded that staff 
does need approval for Chicago Rush North Soccer to attain affiliate status. Mr. Ralston 
explained that there are six different affiliates with the Chicagoland area and each of 
those affiliates are run separately. Mr. Ralston explained that since they wear the 
Chicago Rush uniforms and register in tournaments under Chicago Rush North /Chicago 
Rush that they are able to share players within the six Chicagoland affiliates.  

 
 Ms. Wright said that technically Chicago Rush North is not a Lincolnshire program and 

that Chicago Rush is basically a private soccer program that wants to utilize 
Lincolnshire’s facilities.  

  
 Ms. Siegel asked how the cost of the Classification B status of $20/participant/season 

was decided. Mr. Woodbury said that this was based on the Village Code. Mr. Woodbury 
explained that moving forward, staff will review the annual athletic field usage fees to 
see if these fees are in line with what the Park Board and Village Board want. Mr. Fell 
asked Mr. Woodbury if the Classification B is the same Classification that the 
Lincolnshire Sports Association receives from house baseball and travel baseball and 
Mr. Woodbury confirmed. Mr. Fell asked Mr. Woodbury if the cost associated with the 
affiliates cover the cost of reseeding, usage, aerating and any other costs associated 
with maintaining the sports fields. Mr. Woodbury said that he would need to bring back 
more information but from what he can see on the surface it seems to be covering it. Mr. 
Woodbury said that ultimately that decision would be up to the Park Board and Village 
Board. Mr. Woodbury explained that in early 2019 this will be presented to the Park 



Minutes of the November 28, 2018 Park Board Meeting 
Page 3 of 5 
 

Board to review the costs and probably ask similar questions. Ms. Wright said that there 
needs to be more concrete data submitted to look at when formulating the associated 
cost. 

 
 Mr. Woodbury asked if there are any other questions from the Park Board. Chairman 

Borgerding asks that in the absence of Lincolnshire Sports Association Lighting and 
Rush Soccer what does a Lincolnshire resident do if their child wants to participate in 
travel soccer. Mr. Ralston explained that these parents would have to take their children 
to different organizations which are located in different towns.  

 
 Mr. Woodbury said that the last time an affiliate was approved was for Slammers around 

2012. Mr. Woodbury explained that if the Park Board thinks they have sufficient 
information they can refer this to the Village Board and the Mayor of Trustees for 
approval for an affiliate under Class B status, or if the Park Board doesn’t feel that they 
have enough information and that more questions need to be answered then this can be 
deferred to the next Park Board meeting, or that Park Board can ultimately deny this 
request.   

  
 Chairman Borgerding asked if anyone would like to make a motion. 
 
 A motion made by Ms. Siegel to refer this to the Village Board, with an agreement that 

there is a staff review of the pricing structure for the field usage policy done within the 
first quarter of 2019. The motion was seconded by Mr. Fell, to approved by unanimous 
voice vote.   

  
6.2 Consideration and Discussion of Eagle Scout Procedures for Prospective Scout 

Projects within the Village of Lincolnshire (Village of Lincolnshire)  
 

Mr. Facchini explained that the Village of Lincolnshire is routinely contacted by Boy 
Scouts of America to perform Eagle Scout projects within the Villages boundaries. Mr. 
Facchini said that the staffs goal is to have these Scouts apply at a consistent practice 
and procedures for the Scouts to follow. Mr. Facchini explained that in the proposed 
procedure guidelines, the Scouts would have to present the proposed project to the Park 
Board no later than March of the year that the project will be completed. Mr. Facchini 
said that if the Park Board accepts these procedures, then staff would reach out to Boy 
Scouts of America to make then aware of the changes. Mr. Facchini said that in part of 
the proposed application and procedure changes staff would require the Scout to 
complete sign a waiver of personal injury which is currently used for all Village 
volunteers during functions such as Boo Bash. Mr. Facchini explained that the project 
and the volunteer work would be denied if this form is not filled out or is incomplete. Mr. 
Facchini said that it is staff’s recommendation to adopt the proposed procedure and 
application. 
 
Chairman Borgerding said that he thinks that this is a great idea. Ms. Wright said that the 
Village should think about adding in a ‘maintenance cost’ report where the Village see 
how much will be spent in future years in regards to maintaining the Eagle Scouts 
projects. Mr. Fell said that he thinks that this is a good idea as well. Chairman 
Borgerding asked if we should have this ‘carrying cost’ report in the Eagle Scout 
Application form or if we should have Village staff do their own assessment on how 
much it is going to cost to maintain the Eagle Scouts project. Ms. Wright said that it 
should be both part of the form and also a conversation that the Eagle Scout has with 



Minutes of the November 28, 2018 Park Board Meeting 
Page 4 of 5 
 

Village staff prior to the project. Mr. Fell made a recommendation that the form is ok and 
that there should be area in the project procedures that there is an initial meeting with 
Village staff to understand the project and costs associated with their project. Mr. Fell 
feels that this would be beneficial so that when the Eagle Scout comes to the Park Board 
they have all the costs associated with their project. Chainman Borgerding said that prior 
to submission of the application the Eagle Scout would have to meet with Public Works 
to discuss long term maintenance costs.   
 
Ms. Wright made a motion to approve the Eagle Scout Procedures as is with a slight 
adjustment. The motion was seconded by Mr. Fell, to approve by unanimous voice vote.  
 

6.3 Consideration and Discussion of a Lincolnshire Parks Survey (Village of 
Lincolnshire) 

  
 Mr. Facchini how Village staff is working to update the Parks, Paths and Open Space 

master plan. Mr. Facchini explained how staff if seeking feedback from residents through 
online surveys which are used to access parks, paths and open space conditions. Mr. 
Facchini explained how this feedback would then be used to see what the recreation 
needs and desires for the community. Mr. Facchini explained that the multiple choice 
survey would take roughly five to ten minutes to complete. Staff is looking for any 
question recommendations prior to the Park Board referring this to the Village Board. 

 
 Chairman Borgerding suggested that question 2 and 3 as well as questions 6 and 7 on 

the survey should have the same multiple choice answers to choose from. Ms. Wright 
said that it might be helpful for residents to see a map of the paths that the survey 
pertains to. Mr. Facchini stated that he can always reference specific paths as well. Ms. 
Wright suggested that any time consistency is mentioned, the same multiple choice 
answers should be provided. Mr. Fell said that the survey should ask if the resident or a 
family member use the park, is it for house league or travel league reasons. Ms. Wright 
suggested that the Village list the address or geographic location of the Park and not just 
have the name of the park listed in the survey. Mr. Zhou asked if a Village survey like 
this was ever performed. Mr. Woodbury said that the Village sent out a hard copy of the 
survey to residents in 2015 but it wasn’t specifically for parks. Mr. Zhou is curious what 
the return percentage of the survey was or will be. Mr. Woodbury said that at the time he 
it was staff’s belief that if you got a return rate of 20%-25% or more than it was 
considered a very good return rate. Mr. Fell wanted to know how the Village was going 
to prevent the same person from completing the survey more than once.  

 
 Mr. Woodbury explained that Pocket Park and Trailhead Park were not listed on the 

proposed survey because at this time the Village has not excepted the maintenance 
responsibly associated with these parks. Mr. Fell suggested that Memorial Park be 
added to the survey.  

 
 Mr. Woodbury said that after Village staff adjusts and updates the surveys based on 

todays feedback, they will bring it back to a future Park Board Meeting.  
 
 Chairman Borgerding suggested that the Village raffle off a $25.00 gift card or something 

of this nature for people who completed the survey which might increase the amount of 
feedback the Village from residents. Mr. Woodbury said that Public Works can bring 
back a few recommendations as to an incentive to get residents to take the survery.  

 



Minutes of the November 28, 2018 Park Board Meeting 
Page 5 of 5 
 
 Mr. Fell made motion with a recommendation that the survey be brought back to the 

Park Board at a later date with discussed changes. The motion was seconded by Mr. 
Zhou, to approved by unanimous voice vote.   

 
7.0 UNFINISHED BUSINESS 
 7.1 None 
  
8.0 NEW BUSINESS 

8.1  None 
 

9.0 ADJOURNMENT 
 9.1  A motion was made by Mr. Fell, seconded by Ms. Siegel, to adjourn the meeting. 

The motion was approved by unanimous voice vote.  Chairman Borgerding declared the 
meeting adjourned at 8:16 pm. 

 



General Questions/Answers to LSA Regarding  
Chicago Rush Affiliate Application 

 
 

1. Does this program provider a direct benefit to residents of the Village? If so, 
please explain in detail.  The direct benefit is it gives the residents of Lincolnshire an 
opportunity to play a more competitive level of soccer in their own community versus a house 
soccer program.  This program is no different than Lincolnshire Lightning Soccer Club. However 
the increased benefit is the opportunity for those Lincolnshire players to have additional 
opportunities that want to play even more soccer. The Rush organization is the worlds largest 
youth soccer club.  It boasts over 35,000 players worldwide, with 29 states, and 20 countries all 
coaching the Rush way.  To provide this opportunity to players within the village of Lincolnshire 
is a huge benefit to giving players a chance to compete locally, regionally, and nationally.  Rush 
offers community programs that collect old soccer gear, and donates to our sister club in 
Cameroon.  We have player loan programs, where any player can go and guest with another 
Rush club around the world.  We have a pyramid of player development, which now can offer 
players the chance to play pro, with our Rush pro team out of Pennsylvania. The program has 6 
other Rush clubs around Chicago land, and players with Rush North now have a true path way 
to develop and be part of something huge, right on their doorstep. 
 
 

2. Does this program provide a direct benefit to LSA? If so, please explain in detail.  
      The LSA benefits have not changed from when it was Lincolnshire Lightning versus Chicago 

Rush North, it allows the kids in the community an opportunity to improve their soccer skills and 
fitness.  

 
 
3. Is the proposed Affiliate offering a program similar to that which has historically 

been offered by LSA? Please explain. Yes, same program structure in terms of leagues, 
games, practices and LSA oversight.  LSA administers and approves all contracted terms to run 
the soccer club with the exception of different curriculum to improve soccer skills and 
fitness.  Utilize the Rush curriculum model versus previous contracted Director of Coaching 
soccer model. 
 
 

4. How many games, practices and camps would be proposed as part of this affiliate 
agreement? Same number of games, practices and optional skills in season sessions.  Per 
team, 8 games in fall (home/away) and 8 games in Spring (home/away).  Each team gets two 
practices per week.  Optional two one hour skills sessions per week in fall and spring which is 
included in the fee.  Camps vary in Spring and summer, but additional camps in summer-one 
week summer camp and two days per week for 16 weeks skills sessions.  This is the same as 
previous program. 

 



5. Considering the increase in practices, games and camps, is sufficient field time 
available? YES as of right now based on the number of players/teams. However there has 
been a decrease in the number of players using North Park due to our team structure.  U8-U10 
teams are rostered based on community.  For example, the Lincolnshire players would be 
placed on a U8, U9 or U10 team named Boys -U8-U10 Lincolnshire Premier and play and 
practice at North Park.  If their is a U8 team made up of Buffalo Grove kids, they would be 
named U8 Grove Premier and play and practice at Buffalo Grove Fields.  At the U11-U19 
teams, they are combined and if the majority of kids are from D103 or D125, then practice at 
North Park.  If it is split at U11-U15 (non-HS) 50/50 Buffalo Grove and Lincolnshire, the teams 
practice at VHAC.  Please keep in mind these players may be D103 players.  So far all HS Boys 
(U16-U19) teams are made up of D125 players/Lincolnshire residents and practice at North 
Park. 

 
 

6. Could LSA provide a report of participants/registration numbers to the 
Village? This report would provide a roster of Rush Players, etc. 
OK, but may take longer depending on the data elements you want to receive.  If it is 
participants/registration numbers, not an issue.  However if names, addresses, etc.   Our 
privacy policy may not cover releasing this information to a third party and thus I need to 
investigate the need to request consent from the parent/guardian.  This may take some time 
and wouldn't be ready by this Wednesday. 
 
 

7. Should MSC Midwest Soccer Coaches should possibly be treated as a separate 
affiliate?  We can do that, but again MSC or Rush cannot use North Park or operate without 
LSA approval and regardless of either MSC or Rush getting affiliate status, I under LSA will 
continue to administer and approve all aspects of the program. 
 
 

8. What are the anticipate revenues related to this agreement? Do you need to see all 
revenue and expenses related to league fees, tournaments, indoor space rental, etc or just the 
revenue number say $450,000 and expenses are $450,000.  That is approximate, but what 
comes in per player fee goes out.  Or numbers that use North Park and the fee per player? 
 
 

9. What Percentage of kids in LSA are in fact Lincolnshire kids? 70%-100% depending on 
the sport. 
 
 

10.  Has the Chicago Rush North taken the place of the Lincolnshire Lightning? LSA 
contracts out the coaching to Midwest Soccer Coaching and Chicago Rush North has the 
responsibility of uniforms, league fees tournaments, scheduling etc. 
  
 



 

       CHICAGO RUSH NORTH SERVES THE FOLLOWING COMMUNITIES & SURROUNDING AREAS: 

 

 

Rush Mission Statement 

Chicago Rush Soccer is committed to providing an unparalleled soccer experience for all who 
have interest in the game of soccer. Chicago Rush promotes the development of character, the 
electricity of competition and the importance of pure enjoyment. We accept the responsibility of 
teaching life lessons to our athletes to further their growth inside the game and out. We believe 
that all players should be afforded an equal opportunity to explore their potential and 
participate in challenging circumstances that will yield positive outcomes. We are committed to 
making soccer a pleasant, safe and rewarding experience for everyone involved, regardless of 
age or ability. Through quality coaching, sound leadership and absolute sincerity, Chicago Rush 
Soccer will work to be the best soccer club in the world. 
 
For more information, or to be part of the Chicago Rush Soccer Club affiliate, please 
contact Chicago@chicagorushsoccer.com 

"Where the Trails of Passion and Purpose Meet, Begins the Path to Victory" 

 

Rush Vision Statement 

Our aim is to partner with like-minded clubs around the world and create a player base which is 
unmatched in both quality and quantity. Elite players developed within this base will eventually 
feed into a Rush professional team representing one of the most recognized brands in the 
world. 



Each partner must desire to become number one in their respective areas/states/countries. As 
we continue to establish Rush Branch Chapters throughout the world, we will eventually create 
an enormous pyramid type structure with a professional team at the pinnacle and several 
second tier feeder professional teams below. The international organization benefits expected 
through the affiliation of multiple clubs represents a significant step in creating a club 
association that will be one of a kind. The expansion plan will result in a projected membership 
base of 100,000 and a projected $100 million budget. 

The potential for opportunities with Rush is enormous: a minor league system with a 
professional team, a national coach and player development network, a sharing of intellectual 
property rights, and a monumental membership base. In addition, we can achieve economies of 
scale in multiple ways such as purchasing bulk uniforms and spreading advertising and coaching 
education over a greater range of markets. We can also exploit it by presenting business 
opportunities for substantial marketing impressions through corporate sponsorship 
agreements. To achieve all of our goals, it is paramount we attract exceptional individuals with 
the same vision. 

"Where the Trails of Passion and Purpose Meet, Begins the Path to Victory" 

 



 

 



�

�������	
���
��������

�
��������	
���
�������
��
�������������������������������

�������� !"�#! $�
�
�
�%�&���'� �������	
�����
�������������������������������
�����	������������	����

�����
	������
���	��	�
�� 
�������	�
�!
���"#�$��%�&'�(
�)*+���
,���	���������
	������
���	��	�
�� 
����-�

�
���������(%�)��*'�

�
�������	
����#�����������
�����
��.�����������/
��
	���0#�$��%�
��������1����
��

�

�����+��*�
�,-����+��'�

�
2	
���	��34�(�����	�#��������(�	)���	����	�

�
�������*���'� �

�
!
��	�
���2�
	������	�������

�
�%��+�,-�+�.���%�*'���
�������	���������
	������
���	��	�
�� 
�����,���-�	�5������
�6�	.����������� ������
�����	�����
��	�����	�
���
��&'�	�������
��	�
�#�!
���"#�$��%4�����	�5��������.
���6�	��
����������7����
���
��	��������������8�9�����	�5��	�������
���2�
	��
66	�:
�����
�6�	.���6	��	��������
���4�����
���	������������	�5����������;�#������������9
�:��#�9�������������
����
���	
������
���������
�������6
��4��
�
�%*������/+��'���
��������
��<������������.���������������
����������(�	)��6�	�������������
���������������
��.6�	
	��7=���
	)���8�����������
�����
���������	
������	��4��������
������.
������������;�#����

���
��5�
���������
	��
:
��
�����������>���	
��?����2��������	�$��%4�
�
���0�������0��,���/+��'���
��������6	�6�����������������
.�����	���
���
�����
	�9�������������
������������+�:�	9�����
+�
�����9����"@���14!4����%@���1!4��	������	�����9�����
:����.�����
��������	��������	
������
6	������	����	�#������.�	������
������9�������
����	� ��4����������9���������
�6�	.����	�.�����
A
)����������:����������	
��6�	�
��������������+�:�	9�����+�
�4�
�
��������*+����'��
��
�����66�	�������	�5�������9
�:�	�������������
�������������������9����6
���6	
�����4�
1�������
���#���
���	���..�����
66	�:
���������6�	.������B�����������������.6�����������
�����9����
���:������������B��������9���������6�	.��@�
�

�4� �����
������	����
���6	�6�	��������9����+�����$$��������������
���C:�	����+�
��
���������	���9������
:����	�����	�����	����
���������+�:�	9�����+�
������������
���.���������:���4�����������	���������������:�	����������6	�6�	�����:�
��4�4�.
���
�
.���.�.��������
����������.�	�������$���
���6	��	���������:���4�
�

$4� ���)��6��	
����������6������6
	)����
	�
��
��=�	����
	)�
�������
�����	�����
������
�������������������:���4�
�

�4� D���	.�
���6
	����6
����	��
	�����������
����6
	)�������
������
���	���	��������
6�
�������	��������
����	��������
���
	���������	
������	��4�

�



�

�������	
���
��������

�
��
���9����6�
�����������������	
��������������
��<���6	������9������	#�9������#�����9��
���:
	�����
�.
�������������6	��	��������	
��4���
���
����6�
��������������.������.���
�����
	����������	.�
	����������������6�
�����	�
�������	��
���	
��4�
�
��/���)�+�*���%����)����+���*�

�� ����
�����	������
�����	.���166���
�����
�� +�5��	�����	�����
������D���	
����
�� !
6����+
���+�����
���+�
�������	���
�� ����
�����	������
����������

�
��������1�)���,�

�����+��������+�����2���+�����+�*�3�
�4'� ��������� !"�#! $�
�









 

 

 
 

Village of Lincolnshire 
Village Street Usage Policy 

 
 

1. Policy Statement 
 
To provide limitations to the number of events held on Village streets and to establish 
guidelines for the approval, pre-race coordination, race day set-up and clean-up 
process. 
 
2. Criteria for Use 
 
The following are criteria that organizations must meet in order to be considered for 
approval: 
 
A. The organization must be not-for-profit and have no political affiliation and must 

have a significant relationship with the Lincolnshire community.  This can be 
demonstrated by meeting one of the following: 

  
� Having a membership of which 55% or more reside within the corporate 

limits of the Village. 
� Having a charter or other official recognition by a parent state or national 

organization that designates it a Lincolnshire chapter.  
� The Corporate Authorities hereby find that the following organizations 

satisfy the foregoing  criteria in subparagraphs (A) and/or (B): 
 

Friends of Ryerson Woods/River Committee of Lincolnshire  
Lincolnshire Community Association 
Lincolnshire Garden Club 
Lincolnshire Community Nursery  School  
Lincolnshire Sports Association  
Lincolnshire Swim Club 
Riverside Foundation Auxiliary 
Greater Lincolnshire Chamber of Commerce 
School District # 103 Foundation 
School District # 103 Parent Teacher Organization 
School District # 125 Foundation 
Village Club of Lincolnshire 
Houses of Worship 
Homeowners Association management offices that serve residential 
developments in Lincolnshire 
Cub Scouts, Boy Scouts and Eagle Scouts, Brownies &  



 

 

Girl Scouts 
Y Princesses and Y Guides  
League of Women Voters 
Lincolnshire Morningstar Rotary Club 
Toastmaster of Lincolnshire 
 

B. The organization must be not-for-profit and have no political affiliation and must 
have a significant relationship with the Lincolnshire community.  This can be 
demonstrated by meeting one of the following: 

 
C. Being one of the following taxing bodies serving Village residents:  
 

Lincolnshire-Riverwoods Fire Protection District 
School District # 103 
School District # 125 Vernon Area Public Library Vernon Township 
West Deerfield Township 
 

D. Being one of the following entities serving the Village:  
 

Federal, State and Local Representatives for purposes of holding Town Meetings, 
which will not be allowed within 30 days of an election if the representatives are 
running for office. 

 
Being an organization of Lincolnshire business whose purpose is to support and 
encourage business within the Village 
 

E. Being an organization which provides a recreational service within Lincolnshire  
 
F. Being an organization which provides services for people with special needs:  
 

Special Recreation Association of Central Lake County (SRACLC)  
Riverside Foundation 

 
If the organization does not meet the above criteria, then they shall have an opportunity 
to present to the Mayor and Board of Trustees an explanation for consideration. 
 
3. Number of Events 
 
There shall be an opportunity for three (3) events to be held on Village streets per year.  
Each event will be limited to 1,000 participants.  One each in the Spring, Summer 
and Fall.  The Spring designation will be the months of March, April and May.  The 
Summer will be June, July and August, and the Fall will be September and October.  
There shall not be any activities allowed during November, December, January and 
February.  This is due to the leaf collection and snow and ice control programs.  The 
awarding of a Spring, Summer and Fall time slot shall be on a first come, first served 
basis.  However, the previous year’s event shall have priority over any new applicant.  



 

 

**The Mayor and Board of Trustees may authorize an additional race event at their 
discretion as long as the event is held on a separate weekend from another event.  
 

Example:  If an organization has held a run/walk in Lincolnshire for ten 
consecutive years in the summer and normally approaches the Village for 
approval in January and a new organization requests the summer time slot and 
their request is given to staff prior to the 10 year organization, then the Village 
would contact the incumbent group and inform them of the potential competition 
and secure a commitment.  If the ten year organization declines to request a 
reservation, then the new group would take over that time slot and have first right 
of refusal power the following year. 
 

4. Approval 
 
A. The organization must present to the Mayor and Board of Trustees in writing its 

intent and ability to meet the criteria as set forth in paragraph 2.  This information 
will be discussed at a Committee of the Whole meeting and voted on at a 
subsequent Village Board meeting. 

 
B. The organization will be required to provide the Village with a Certificate of 

Insurance in the amount of one (1) million dollars to cover any liability. 
 
C. A cash bond in the amount of $1,000.00 will be required for maintenance. 
 
5. Pre-Race and Race Day Coordination 
 
There shall be a single contact person the Village can communicate with during the 
entire process.  This person will make a presentation to the Mayor and Board of 
Trustees, hold a minimum of one meeting with the Lincolnshire Police and Public Works 
Departments and Lincolnshire - Riverwoods Fire Protection District personnel and be 
present on the race day for the event and final clean up.  The start/finish and race 
course area shall be returned to its original condition within 8 hours of the 
completion of the event. 
 
There shall be no advertising signage allowed and disruption of the neighborhood 
should be held to an absolute minimum. 


	1.0 Agenda
	2.1 11-26-2018 COW Minutes
	3.51_2018_12_10_Chicago_Rush_Affiliate_Approval
	3.52_2018_12_10_COW_Run for D103 5K

	Return to Agenda: 


